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Application and Process Q&A Session

March 13, 2002



Purchasing (Pur):

Jane Maples

Pur 1) (JSC) Page 14 of 11/13/01 Maples charts:  Separate RFQs required for each vendor:  may have 50 offerers on an RFQ—why do we need same RFQ identified individually for each vendor.  Did not understand verbal summary of “workaround.”

Answer:
The RFQ window in SAP is where the solicitations are created as well as where offers are recorded.  The method in which NASA intends to use this functionality is to create the solicitation using a “Generic Solicitation Vendor”, which recognizes that most of NASA’s solicitations are competitive in nature and posted to the internet via the Electronic Posting System (EPS).  The “collective number” field is being used as the solicitation number.  Once offers are received, if the evaluation was based on price only, the buyer will manually input all quotes into the system and use the “price comparison” functionality within SAP, which automatically ranks the quotes by price and delivery terms.  In order to enter the offers, SAP requires individual RFQ numbers (quotation numbers), which are linked via the “collective number” (i.e., solicitation number), for each offer received in response to the solicitation.  If the evaluation is based on factors other than price (e.g., mission suitability), then the evaluation will occur outside the system just as it does today and only the successful offer would be recorded in the system.

Pur 2) (JSC) Page 23, Maples 11/13/01 charts:  Minimum obligation on an IDIQ contract is made with the first task order. What if that first order is placed by another center or government agency?  Can they obligate on a JSC contract? 

Answer:
The IDIQ contract will be created on the Outline Agreement window in SAP and no obligation occurs from this window; therefore, the “minimum” obligation required for the IDIQ contract will be made on the first task/delivery order, which is created on the Purchase Order window in SAP.   The Purchasing Organization (Porg) within SAP represents in a broad sense the Center Procurement Offices.  An additional global Porg has been configured to utilize for NASA’s Consolidated Contract Initiative (CCI) contracts.   CCI contracts will be available through the NASA Porg for all centers (plants) to order against; therefore, the first order, regardless of the originating center, will obligate the minimum requirement.

Pur 3) (JSC) Page 22, 11/13/01 Maples charts:  The Commercial PO screen has blocks for Estimated Cost, base fee, etc.  Are the values to be inserted minimum fees?  (may be $0) Max fees?  (may be unlimited—a travel contract, utilities ops contract, commercialization contract) or “nominal” fees? 

Answer:
The values to be inserted should be maximum fees applicable to the contract.  These fields should be populated with the same values that are entered on the NF507.
Pur 4) (JSC) Page 18, 11/13/01 Maples charts:  Automatic routing and approval of award documents—is the entire purchase order document in SAP?  How do people outside the list of formal “roles” reflect review/concurrence?  Via an outside-the-loop cycle? 

Answer:
Each center configures their center's release strategy.  Documents can be “Ad Hoc” or emailed to people outside the SAP system.  
Pur 5) (JSC) How does the system accommodate purchases worked (even awarded) without a PR?  For example, $0-value facilities contract; RFQs released in advance of a PR being generated; entrepreneurial offer resulting in a $0-value contract? 

Answer:
The SAP system does not accommodate purchases worked without a PR; however, a Planning PR can be created with a zero value.  See also 22.  

Pur 6) (JSC) Page 17, 11/13/01 Maples charts:  SAP’s Evaluation of Offers—doing a price comparison list implies all vendors are bidding against the same technical content; often not true.  So is this necessary?

Answer:
Doing a price analysis through the SAP system is an option as discussed above under number 1.

Pur 7)  (JSC) How does SAP accommodate a contract that will have a negative value?  For example, utilities or facility use contract wherein contractor pays the government—like NASA’s previous travel services contract—or a commercial agreement in which the contractor performs work and pays us.

Answer:
The SAP system does not accommodate a negative contract value.  Currently each center has a Reimbursable Agreement Number (RAN), which accommodates rebates such as energy savings costs (which are split between the center and treasury), in other instances credits can be used to lower a contract value.

Pur 8) (JSC) Page 14, Maples charts 11/13/01:  Don’t understand concept of accounting line items and purchasing line items; is there a 1-to-1 relationship?  Does a purchase order/contract have to be structured along line items?  Are those line items tracked separately (separate 533’s, vouchers, etc.)?  Is a purchasing line item considered like a contract end item—DD250’s, etc.?

Answer:
(8 & 9 Combined) Accounting line items (ALIs) and Purchasing Line Items (PLIs) can have a one to one relationship or have a many to one relationship.  For instance, ALIs are very similar to our accounting/funding lines today and each might be associated to a PLI or a Contract Line Item (CLIN).  (See Screen Shots 4-6 from Purchasing Wave 2 presentation for examples).

Pur 9) (JSC) Can you explain what is meant by “Accounting line items directly linked to Procurement line items?”  (Page 8, Procurement briefing)

Answer:
Combined with #8.

Pur 10) (JSC) Page 14, 11/13/01 Maples charts:  Vendor quotes input into SAP, linked to RFQ:  on many competitive procurements, this info is confidential—limited to buyer and Source Evaluation Board.  How is security handled?

Answer:
Security within the system is “role based”, (e.g., Center buyer, requisitioner, procurement approver).  The role an individual is assigned determines what windows an individual will have access to within SAP.  Therefore, only people assigned to specific roles will have access to these records.

Pur 11) (JSC) Can the system accommodate partial DD250’s?  Not partial deliveries (like 6 of a 10-order delivered), a partial completion (e. g., OV-105 was delivered partially complete and a DD250 signed when orbiter major mods were done (previously), DD250’s with open items/WADS were signed).

Answer:
The system will allow progress payments and costs can be accrued through straight-line calculations or Contractor Cost Reports (CRR/NF533 extension).

Pur 12) (JSC) How does the Bankcard system work if the cardholder needs to buy something immediately?

Answer:
As in the present, as long as funds are available, you make the purchase with your card and create an order log in the Credit Card Solutions, Inc P-Card Web Solution software.

Pur 13) (JSC) Is the network account already set up to link to a project/WBS level?  Is that why the WBS does not show up on the PR screen?  (Purchasing briefing)

Answer:
Yes.  Within the setup of the budget structure, the WBS and Network are linked; therefore, this relationship is invisible to the requisitioner or buyer.

Pur 14) (JSC)At what point is the commitment, obligations complete?  (At a certain point in the approval process?)

Answer:
Presently, the commitment for Purchase Requests and the obligation for Purchase Orders is recorded when the document is saved by either the requisitioner or the buyer.  However, the approved obligation (legally binding) is when the document has been fully approved (i.e., released) by the Contracting Officer.

Pur 15) (JSC) Scenario: I'm looking at CCI and discover that GRC has an IDIQ TO/DO contract for a service that I need at JSC. GRC grants permission for JSC to use its contract for the service. QUESTION: Since JSC will generate its own Purchase Order for the work needed and reference the GRC contract on the order, will it be necessary for JSC's obligations to somehow tie-in to the GRC contract template? Or is it treated merely as a JSC stand-alone action and only reported as a CCI action against the GRC vehicle?

Answer:
CCI contracts will be setup using the Outline Agreement window with “NASA“ as the Porg.  Other Centers will have access to issuing orders against the CCI contract.  In the example cited, the JSC PR should reflect the “NASA” Porg and also identify the GRC contract in the “source of supply” field, which then provides an automatic link between the task/delivery order and the IDIQ contract.  This link between the task/delivery order and the IDIQ contract automatically tracks the awards (quantity and value) made against the CCI contract. 

Pur 16) (JSC) Reporting: JSC is about to implement an Agency-wide website using the JSC Homepage for the purchase of JWOD (Javits, Wagner, O'Day) Promotional, Motivational, and Awards items. This will be implemented later this month and the primary source for the acquisitions will be the P-card. QUESTION:  Once a P-card purchase is made, will JSC or any other Center be able to slice and dice the data a customized a report?

Answer:
Each Center Coordinator will be able to slice and dice the data using standard CCSi reports based on various criteria on the order logs.

Pur 17) (JSC) Explain how FIPS code will be used.

Answer:
The Federal Information Processing Standard (FIPS) code will be populated in an user-defined field that is associated with the WBS element.  This field will be populated at the time of the creation of the Reimbursable Agreement.

Pur 18) (JSC) Define cage code.

Answer:
A CAGE (Contractor and Government Entity) is a five-position code that identifies companies doing or wishing to do business with the Federal Government.  See NFS 18.04.

Pur 19) (KSC) Will CAGE codes be used in SAP? If so, where? I did not see anything that specifically identified a CAGE code.

Answer:
The CAGE Code will be populated as a “Search Term 1” in the SAP vendor master.

Pur 20) (JSC) Extensions Inventory:  Can more than one org own a purchase request?

Answer:
No, only one org can own a purchase request.

Pur 21) (JSC) Extensions Inventory:  Will there be a configuration mgt system to track changes to purchase request such as fund level changes (increases and decreases), accounting code changes, and closing of PR (return of what kind of funds)?

Answer:
SAP tracks changes to each PR (document) with the header and item detail change history.  

Pur 22) (JSC) Extensions Inventory:  Will a user be able to enter a purchase request before funds are available in hold status?  Once the funds arrive then they can submit it.

Answer:
You can use a planning PR with $0.  Once funds are identified the Planning PR would be changed by adding the funding information.

Budget Execution (BE):

Cynthia Smith

BE 1) (JSC) Will we receive funds at 3-digit, 5-digit or what?  (506 at a 5-digit?)

Answer:
Funds will be issued the same as before implementation – either at 3-, 5-, or 7-digit according to the level the Enterprise chooses.

BE 2) (JSC) Currently 506A has a remarks area to direct where $ goes.  What will happen with new SAP process?

Answer:
The budget entry document (which is used to issue funds in the SAP system) has a Long Text input where this information should be entered.

BE 3) (JSC) If 5-digit is called a project, what’s a 3-digit called?  (Provide definitions/crosswalk from current verbiage to SAP verbiage.)

Answer:
A 3-digit UPN that has no lower AWCS code will be established as a project also.  The Project will then be structured as follows:

· Project Definition
AIN-UPN

· WBS Level 1
AIN-UPN- 
(Reporting Level Only/No Postings)

· WBS Level 2
AIN-UPN-00
(Posting Level if no lower WBS levels)

· WBS Level 3
AIN-UPN-00-CU
(Optional Center Unique (CU) posting level)

BE 4) (JSC) Will this be a first come, first serve when it comes to getting funds committed?

Answer:
Yes, as far as funds control on the authority.  However, operating/phasing plans are entered to track plan versus actuals.  Reporting will be available for authority and actuals by Project WBS and Cost Center (Performing Organizations).

BE 5) (JSC) What’s the distinction between network and activity?  How do they work and how are #’s assigned?  (pages 25-27 of Fund Control Process)

Answer:
Network and activities are used together – Networks will not be established without at least one activity.  They work as a level below the CU WBS optional level if further breaks are needed by task and/or subtask.  The actuals at these level roll up to the WBS level to which they are subordinate to.  Network numbers are assigned automatically by the system (Example:  6000001).  Activity numbers are subordinate to the Network and can be alphanumeric 4-digit codes (either system generated or specifically formatted as requested).

BE 6) (JSC) Non-programmatic P&RC/Travel level 4 fund center had “TBD.”  Do you know what this is now?  (page 33 in Fund Control Process)

Answer:
The Level 4 funds center for labor and travel essentially are optional levels if the Center chooses to control these funds at a level lower than the Center receives the authority.  The definition of this level depends on how the Center chooses to control funds below the issuance level.
  


MSFC Example:


62-LABOR (This level 4 funds center will be used for labor-related Fund Source 41 funding).


62-TRAINING (This level 4 funds center will be used for training related Fund Source 41 funding).


62-MPTRAVEL (This level 4 funds center will be used for travel Fund Source 42 funding for all travel performed at MSFC in support of the Shuttle Program.  In this example, the MP is the organization code of the Space Shuttle Program Office at MSFC).

BE 7) (JSC) Can you explain, again, how subauthorizations will work after all centers are up on SAP?

Answer:
Budget Execution only has an interim design for this question, not a design for after last Center rollout.  Therefore, the answer is To Be Determined.

BE 8) (JSC) Is the sub-authorization data for conversion from receiver verified with sender?  The receiver's financial system may not carry as many digits in their accounting structure as sender.  

Answer:
The sub-authorization data (for both issuances and receipts for a Center) for conversion is verified with Code BR at Headquarters against the data in the CRCS (for 1999 and forward) and by BR/Mary Gaskins using her manual spreadsheets and validated against FACS reports.  Once the data are validated, the amounts issued to another Center would be subtracted from the authority amounts before uploading into SAP.

BE 9) (JSC) If the new system was to track the sub-allot plan, the sender (or hqtrs) would have to provide that, too.  The receiver may not have that information.

Answer:
The sub-allotment plans are not in scope to Budget Execution, but will be in Budget Formulation.

BE 10) (KSC) Charts on deviation rules (Charts 20, 21, 22) do not provide adequate detail to understand what point of conversion is being made here. I’m confused and need more information.  Don’t understand the point. Big impact for centers??  For conversion and deviation rules development?

Answer:
Examples were provided in the Budget Execution handout (129 pages) as examples only.  The specifics for derivation rules must be obtained from the Budget team.

BE 11) (KSC) Regarding the deviation table: derive fund center from cost center and cost element. I believe you can have more than one object class (cost element) for each fund center (UPN Prog code). Is it automatically programmed in SAP to apply the correct cost element for each fund center or will we still have to do any manual input or verification of object class?

Answer:
The derivation rules are created using cost element ranges (example:  6100.2200 to 6100.9999 is the range for any object codes used on transactions that fall within this range).  From this rule, the cost element range (and other portions of the rule such as Fund range) will automatically derive the funds center.

BE 12) (KSC) I did not completely understand the difference between networks and sub networks or task and sub task and how they relate to the WBS structure. The definition in the book described them as lower level planning and actuals but is there going to be any logic in assigning these numbers (11 digits) or will it be generated on a random basis?
Answer:
Numbering of networks and subnetworks (which essentially are networks that are subordinate to a network instead of a WBS element) are generated randomly by the system (see Question 5).

Cost Management (Cost):

Wanda Nelson

Cost 1) (JSC) Is R3 reporting real time for cost reporting extension?

Answer:
Transactions posted in R3 are updated real time.  However, reporting through the Business Warehouse will be one day behind.  

Cost 2) (JSC) On CCR, how are you able to identify responsible/performing org in the FCS?

Answer:
The performing organization equates to the Cost Center.  The responsible organization is not so clearly defined.

Cost 3) (JSC) If no cost over obs, is there a concern that we’re not abiding by the basic accounting principles?  Cost = work performed.  Will there be reporting that accommodates cost = SGL plus cost over obs?

Answer:
Cost over obligations will be calculated in the CCR Extension and the Straightline extension, however, these transactions will not be posted in SAP on the contract.  By doing so, the transactions would automatically obligate and reduce allotment,  only Purchasing has the authority to obligate the Government.  However, cost over obligation transactions will be transferred to the Business Warehouse and reported as a separate line item on the project t status reports.

Cost 4) (JSC) There is confusion on how the standard hierarchy compares to the carrier account/cost pools hierarchy.  Are these “either/or” or can they all be used to collect data?  What elements are used to determine when to use which ones?

Answer:
In order to collect, report, or allocate cost, the cost center must be setup in the Standard Hierarchy.  It will contain all the cost centers for NASA, by Center.  Cost Center Groups are used to create the Alternate Hierarchy which represents carrier accounts/cost pools.  Cost Center Groups may also be created for reporting purposes or for allocation purposes.

Cost 5) (JSC) In November they were working on getting the report by reporting category.  Has that been accomplished?

Answer:
The CCR worksheet functional designed required the viewing or adjusting by reporting category and FCS.  It has been designed this way and will be validated during SIT testing.

Cost 6) (JSC) Have funding issues on 998 been resolved?  (p 36, Cost Reporting)

Answer:
The NSMS interfaces have been received  and testing is beginning.  The funding of the 998 has not been resolved but some ideas are being tested as part of the SIT testing.  Also, further coordination with HQ needs to occur.

Cost 7) (KSC) Regarding the interface of the job labor system with SAP: How will the derivation work flow from the legacy work order code and fund source to arrive at the correct object class code in SAP? Also, will obligations and cost be brought in from the legacy system along with regular and overtime hours?  If so, how will disbursements be computed for each work order code (WBS) in SAP? I currently manually reduce obligations from job labor by the monthly accrual amount to arrive at an actual disbursement amount for each job labor code.
Answer:
1)  The Labor Interface is a unique for each Center and each Center will have to address this individually.  For MSFC, the object class code is already stored in our current labor system, and it will pull it straight over.  A crosswalk table in SAP to convert our legacy account code to the FCS has been created and will be maintained by the Competency Center.  This type of functionality will be available for all Centers.  2)  The labor data will be brought over at the FCS level (i.e., Project WBS, Network, and/or Cost Center) by object class with dollars, hours, FTE’s, and FACS(F) assignment of Science and Engineering or Other.   3) Disbursements are not calculated in SAP, they will be part of the labor interface. The disbursement transaction will be “parked” and updated in SAP based upon the pay date of the payroll.

Cost 8) (JSC) Crosswalk system.  Some contractors do not have the accounting codes.  They send 533 data by task order.  Is there a mechanism to breakdown the data by accounting code?

Answer:
The CCR/FCS crosswalk is the mechanism that will link the reporting category (i.e., task order, WBS, etc.) to the FCS.  The reporting categories will be input manually and linked to the actual FCSs obligated on the contract.

Cost 9) (ARC) Does SAP have Service Requests? Or are Service Requests and Purchase Requests interchangeable?

Answer:
Purchase Requests or Acquisition Requests refer to the Purchasing document in Materials Management for setting up a commitment.  Service Requests are not part of SAP.

Cost 10) (ARC) Will we still have our Center unique forms when we implement IFMP? (i.e., ARC forms)

Answer:
Only forms and reports that meet the Minimum Standard Reports  (plus identified custom agency required reports) are being provided as part of Core Financial.

Cost 11) (ARC) Is SAP capable of allowing Chargeback Managers to trace back to the customer level?

Answer:
Carrier Account/Cost Pool cost that are allocated through assessment cycles will be identified to the Customer by the secondary cost element 9000.XXXX, with the XXXX identifying the carrier account/cost pool.  The Cost Center will identify the carrier account/cost pool from which the customer received the charge.  If the carrier account/cost pool charges the customer direct, once again, the cost center will identify their organization.
Cost 12) (ARC) Are Assessment Cycles for all carrier accounts (992, 994, 997, and 998)? Are they for both allocated AND demand service pools?

Answer:
As SIT testing is occurring, MSFC is evaluating the best method for setting up their Carriers.  Presently, 992 will be accomplished through the assessment cycle, and well as the 994.  The inventory/998 carrier will be processed using the NSMS online interface – which is a demand type carrier account.  The 997 carrier accounts can be  allocated through the assessment cycle process.  Assessment Cycles are used for allocations only.   The accommodation of demand service type activity was a GAP identified with this software.  The Cost Management team is still investigating solutions and/or workarounds for this issue.  

Cost 13) (ARC) What has MSFC worked on that is Center specific to MSFC (besides the labor interface)?

Answer:
Interface with a NF 533 for one of our support contractor system (MICS).

Cost 14) (ARC) Does SAP distinguish a Purchase Order from a Delivery Order? If so, how?

Answer:
Yes, there are separate document types for Purchase Orders and Task/Delivery Orders, which are:  YA – Commercial PO, YB – Non-commercial PO, YC – TO/DO Other Contract, and YD – TO/DO-Under NASA K.

Cost 15) (ARC) Does SAP have an internal work order or a module that is capable of tracking work orders?

Answer:
Yes, internal order can be used.

Cost 16) (ARC) What are the "Derivation Rules" that impact Cost Management, Procurement, Budget Execution, and Accounts Receivable?

Answer:
In order to spend funds on a cost center, the cost center must be linked to a Fund Center.  A fund center may have more than one cost center linked to it, but a cost center can only be linked to one Fund Center, unless it can be distinguished by object class (i.e., labor, travel, all other).  Also, the cost elements and secondary cost elements must be set up in the derivation tables in order for the projects to receive allocations.

Cost 17) (ARC) What is the document capability in SAP? For example, SERVA98080020-001, NAS200098080-M9A, or A00051371D-M02. What will it look like? What is the structure?

Answer: The document field in SAP is 10 characters in length. Examples of the external numbering for purchase orders: A62777R, NAS1098010, NAS8-00110.

Cost 18) (ARC) How does SAP generate serial codes for Purchase Requests and Service Request?

Answer: Purchase Requests use system (SAP) generated numbers.
Cost 19) (ARC) With all the changes to our business practices and rules, what direction will management work towards in respect to continuing Demand Service pools or terminating them.

Answer:
We are working toward a solution to automating the capturing and charging of demand services.

Cost 20) (ARC) Has the accrual issue: not being able to accrue a specific dollar amount instead of a percentage been resolved. (CFP07.mpg, near end of CD)

Answer:
 A special team was reviewing the “replan” activities. For Specific dollar amounts a workaround is to have the system generate separate accounting documents using 100% of the specific dollar values on a particular ALI, with 0% on the other ALIs. The end result allows specific dollar values to be accrued.
Accounts Payable (AP):

Undrell Palmer / Marylou Uchaker

AP 1) (JSC) Page 2, Remit to Vendor Master Data:  Does it contain a field for parent name?  

Answer:
Yes, this is a part of the partnering functionality on the vendor master record.

For 1099 reporting? 

Answer:
Not on the vendor file.

Field to identify goods/services?  

Answer:
Not on the vendor file.  Identification would be at the PO level based on item category, which is set by purchasing.

Lock box numbers?  

Answer:
The Reference Detail Field on the remit-to vendor master will be used for lockbox numbers.

Flagged to pay reportable?

Answer:
 This is not on the Vendor file.
AP 2) (JSC) HHS:  Are 272’s down load at end of each quarter?

Answer:
 SF272’s are interfaced from DHHS to the Centers each month. SF272’s are submitted quarterly, however, if any are submitted during the quarter there will still be sent to the Centers.

AP 3) (JSC) Page 18, IPAC Interface:  Are IPAC requirements at the Center or Agency level?  If at Center level, what are the mandatory requirements in order to set up IPAC invoice in SAP?

Answer:
The following process applies to both Center and Agency: IPAC invoices are entered in SAP in the enter invoice screen with a document type of IPAC invoice.  The payment run will trigger the interface to pick up the file and edits will be performed before the file is transmitted to IPAC to ensure that all required data has been entered.

AP 4) (JSC) Page 4:  When a vendor is set up in Master File and there are more than one contract, are they all going to be tied to the same banking information?

Answer:
Banking information is at the PO/Invoice level not tied to the Vendor Master.

AP 5) (JSC) Page 17, HHS:  Will there be a daily report showing what is being transferred to SAP on draw downs and 272’s?

Answer:
Yes.  HHS Authorization and Disbursement Report.

AP 6) (JSC) Page 2:  We have a change in banking information on an existing vendor, where does the new information get entered?  At Agency or Competency level?

Answer:
The information will be entered at each center on the Payment Transactions screen of the remit-to vendor master. Confirmation will be at the Competency Center level.

AP 7) (JSC) CTX:  At JSC we have approximately 20 vendors on CTX, can they still receive payments via CTX or what is going to happen?

Answer:
Yes, vendors will still be able to receive their payments via CTX.  When setting up the vendor master record JSC will select the payment method of CTX for applicable vendors.

AP 8) (JSC) A/P receives invoice and no obligation in system (SA), what happens to invoice?

Answer:
The Vendor Payment Processor (VPP) will follow the same procedures that they do today when receiving an invoice without an obligation. Invoice will be entered, parked and manually routed for approval. Once returned to Finance, the invoice will be posted and processed in the same manner as all other payments.

AP 9) (JSC) Page 17, HHS:  Now:  HQ IPAC’s centers; Question:  Will HQ continue to get IPAC  charges from HHS?

Answer:
The current process is for HHS to cite NASA Headquarters (HQ) ALC on their (HHS’) 224.  The charges are reflected on HQ’s 224 as a payment and on HHS as a collection.  HQ will continue to IPAC centers for their portion of the HHS drawdowns and post a JV referencing the center’s ALC.  This entry is a debit to HQ cash and a credit to the center’s cash.  Centers that are not on SAP, the process continues as today.  For those, Centers that have implemented SAP, the IPAC from HQ will still occur and be recorded on the IPAC transaction log with no financial impact in the General Ledger.

AP 10) (JSC) Page 17, HHS:  If HHS is making payments to vendor, why are we sending payment file to Treasury?

Answer:
NASA is not sending a payment file to Treasury for HHS.  On page 17 ‘Treasury Interfaces’ is a separate interface.

AP 11) (JSC) Page 18, IPAC Interface:  When a center initiates payment to vendor, does it fall under A/R or A/P?

Answer:
Since this requires entering an invoice in SAP this will be an A/P function with the role being assigned to a specific individual.

AP 12) (JSC) HHS: Are all of the universities required to submit 272 electronically?  Do we have a manual process in place if not done electronically?

Answer:
Yes. Headquarters will be working the issue of informing all of the universities that work with NASA of the electronic 272 requirements.  No manual process has been identified.  NASA headquarters will have a policy for all 272’s to be received electronically using HHS.

AP 13) (JSC) p.3  Do we have a field for vendor and miscellaneous payments?

Answer:
Every payment must have a vendor identified. There must be a vendor master created before any payment can be processed in SAP.

AP 14) (JSC) p. 15  What type of payment confirmation data is Treasury going to provide thru the interface to clear disbursement-in-transit, to clear disbursements and decrease cash?

Answer:
The file contains the schedule number; posting date, check number(s) and amount.  When the file is posted in SAP, the file will match the schedule number to payment ID in SAP and clear the DIT account and decrease cash.

AP 15) (JSC) Can an employee have more than one PPD if they want their travel payments sent to a different bank than where their payroll is deposited?  If so, will the biweekly updates from NPPS override this banking information?

Answer:
An employee can have different bank account data set up for travel payments on line two of the Payment transactions screen.  The NPPS interface update, overrides any updated changes to line item one only.

AP 16) (JSC) How will accounts receivable/bill for collections be performed or processed in SAP when an unliquidated travel advance balance is greater than the net amount of the travel voucher (in other words after processing a travel voucher a balance is still due on the advance)?

Answer:
Un-liquidated travel advances greater than the voucher amount will be manually sent to A/R for processing.

AP 17) (JSC) For some PCS entitlements, Consolidated Payroll Office pays income taxes on the travelers behalf and SAP will pay the net amount.  How will we record both of these disbursements in SAP?

Answer:
PCS is an agency process performed at JSC.  All aspects of travel had been deferred until the Wave deployments.  The only portion of travel that has been configured is the manual input of a Travel Order and Voucher, which would represent the stand-alone environment for Travel that had been scheduled for MSFC as the pilot.   Weekly telecons have been established with the CTO, Agency Process Team, Travel Manager to work through travel related issues. 

AP 18) (JSC) On transaction FB60 (page 28 of AP charts), what happens when the “Calculate tax” box is checked (basic data tab)?

Answer:
The screens prints on page 28 are standard SAP. NASA has not configured the tax tab. Therefore nothing will happen when the box is checked.

AP 19) (JSC) Enter vendor invoice (FB60): What action, if any, will take place if you use the tax dropdown/tax tab?   Also is there a box that needs to be checked to do the calculation of taxes?

Answer: The screens prints on page 28 are standard SAP. NASA has not configured the tax tab. Therefore nothing will happen when the box is checked.
AP 20) (JSC) For travel payments how will penalty payments be recorded and tracked for 1099 interest reporting?

Answer:
SAP automatically records and tracks interest penalties for all payments.

AP 21) (JSC) How will outstanding advances be liquidated when vouchers are processed for payments?

Answer:
Advances will be manually liquidated through the clear down payment process.

AP 22) (JSC) Since payments for change of station and international travel are certified through the Centralized Travel Office, how will this be recorded in IPAC?

Answer:
See response to AP 17 above.

AP 23)  (JSC) Since there are several transactions (entitlements) associated with Permanent Change of Station authorizations, what will determine when cost should be accrued for each entitlement?

Answer:
Travel orders are costed when a travel voucher is received and posted in SAP.  For those orders that are not costed by the end of the month a JV will be entered into the system to accrue the cost and the JV will be reversed the following month.  This process will continue each month until the travel order is complete.  For PCS specific see response to AP 17.
AP 24) (KSC) Since there isn’t any edit to verify or require all the fields of an IPAC bill, how can the interface work with SAP to accurately update and post a disbursement correctly to the correct contract, fund source, program year etc.?
Answer:
When a payment is processed in SAP, the interface will verify that all the required fields have been completed.  It cannot validate that the data is correct.  The IPAC ‘inbound’ will have all the IPAC fields completed, however, it also cannot validate that the data is correct.  If the interface cannot find a match, the transaction will be recorded on an error log.  This error log will need to be reviewed periodically during the month and cleared by month end.

AP 25) (KSC) Regarding data conversion of vendor names is there any specific format required? Example: using “the” or “a” before the company name. Does the vendor name need to be exactly as the W-9 indicates for easier conversion?

Answer:
MSFC used the vendor names as they appeared in the Dunn & Bradstreet data-cleaning tool, however, the key matching will be on the cage code not on the vendor name.

AP 26) (KSC) I believe that I understood that the accounts payable staff would be inputting each line item from invoices received? This would be a time consuming task as a contract might have numerous line items. The contract goods and services should already to be in the system? This appears to be duplicate entry. Is there not a provision to have the purchased items appear as a pre-populated template that A/P could check a block or indicate the number received in a box? The invoice and contract wordage is not always the same; if there is an edit on data entered from the invoice comparing the data in the contract, there should be a reject.

Answer:
Information from the contract/PO is automatically loaded into the invoice screen when the obligation document number is entered in SAP.

AP 27) (KSC) If purchasing drives the commitment and obligation of funds in SAP, how will intergovernmental arrangements be handled? Currently, at KSC, Resource Mgmt personnel can commit, obligate and cost funds through an internal process for those purchases that do not need to have a contract established by procurement (ex: postal services, garbage collection tipping fees, FBI background checks). How will these purchases be committed, obligated and costed without procurement input? Will Procurement take over these purchases? Will Resource Mgmt be granted authority to effect such transactions in the SAP system?

Answer:
For those payments requiring a prior obligation, there will be an outside buyer role in the finance office that can record these obligations in SAP.  For invoices that don’t require a prior obligation in the system an FI invoice can be processed (i.e. one time invoices, low dollar, tort claims). The Agency has defined that FTS charges will require a prior obligation. 

AP 28) (KSC) Interface with IPAC (GOALS II) with SAP: When there is a download of IPAC transactions which affect a center’s ALC, will there also be a download of the reconciling total amounts against the individual IPAC collections and payments? The reason I ask this question is because some agencies (particularly GPO) will input in the Summary Amount field duplicate dollar amounts while the actual dollar amount o the IPAC is indicated in the quantity section of the IPAC page. Will SAP reconcile the IPAC file download with the total dollar amount file option?

Answer:
I am not aware of any type of reconciliation that will be down in SAP.  There will only be one file downloaded from IPAC and any other records or reports will be extracted as they are today.

AP 29) (ARC) Another question in the area of adjusting/moving funds within a contractual instrument (ALI adjustments).  Can you give us an idea of how difficult it is to do this in SAP?  
Answer:
VERY DIFFICULT.

Do we need to set people's expectations that it will be impossible to maintain the volume of adjustments we currently do now?  How will funds get tied up at the end of the FY?
Answer:
In order to move cost and disbursements on an invoice that has been paid and processed through treasury the vendor payment processor will need to create a credit memo for the amount of the invoice that was paid.  The cost area will need to make whatever changes necessary keeping in mind they can only move cost up to the amount of the last paid invoice and then AP will post an invoice to process the change.  AP will then have to clear the vendor account with the credit memo and invoice against each other.  In order to move the obligations a mod will have to be done to de-obligate the funds.  The PR will need to be de-committed.  A new PR or line item will need to be committed, then another mod to re-obligate.

 Accounts Receivable (AR):

Shirley Bumatay

AR 1) (JSC) Does the customer number remain constant for that customer even if they have multiple agreements?

Answer:
Yes.  The number of agreements/orders that a center has for a customer, has no impact on the customer number.

AR 2) (JSC) Is the RAN used?  If so, how?

Answer:
The Ran is included on the Sales Order in “Your reference field” on the “Purchase Order Data” tab; used more as an informational item, no functionality exists.
AR 3) (JSC) On page 16 of the Accounts Receivable presentation, can the system capture the expiration date for each sales order (assuming a sales order is set up for each MIPR, agreement, etc.).  Will there be reporting capabilities to track whether orders have been obligated prior to their expiration date?

Answer:
· The expiration date you saw on Service Order screen was for a credit card.  
· Currently, the expiration date can be recorded on the “Text” tab of the Sales Order, but can not be used for any kind of tracking; no specific MSR for reporting this.

AR 4) (JSC) On page 27 of the Accounts Receivable presentation, is the Open amount a calculated field ?  Does it equal the unbilled amount?

Answer:


· You are referring to the Resource Related Billing Screen
· Yes, this is the unbilled amount through last period billed, and is historical information

· It is a calculated field
AR 5) (JSC) On pages 19 and 22 of the Accounts Receivable presentation, can we charge Center unique overheads?  For instance, JSC charges an overhead called program support that many other Centers do not charge.  Currently, it is a rate charged when civil servant labor hours are worked.  

Answer:
See change to process Pg 13 of 3/13/02 Presentation (see below); if this change was not made, meeting this request would have entailed configuring a  User Exit and doing away with the current configuration, increasing the costing sheet maintenance task 

AR 6) (JSC) Currently, each Center charges a different depreciation rate.  In the new system, is the depreciation rate different for each Center?  If so, how would these different rates be established in the system?

Answer:
See change to process Pg 13 of 3/13/02 Presentation (see below); current configuration assumed this was a fixed amount and picked up from the EPS; if this change was not made, meeting this request would have entailed configuring a  User Exit and doing away with the current configuration, increasing the costing sheet maintenance task 

AR 7) (JSC) How are document numbers assigned?  Does each Center have their own sequentially numbered documents?  Will there be enough document numbers?

Answer:


· Document numbers are assigned based on document type.
· No, document numbers will not be sequential for a given center.

· We will not run out of numbers.
Pg 13 of 3/13/02 Presentation:
Standard General Ledger (SGL):
MelaJo Kubacki

SGL 1) (KSC) SGL presentation. I noticed on the process billing due list the Bill T column has a F2 indicator next to the document number and vendor name. I am assuming F2 indicates FACS non-reportable. Currently only F1 reportable contracts are in the FACS database with a document identification number. Will SAP feed document identification numbers for F2 records into FACS?

Answer:
No this was an error in the FACS(f) interface that has been corrected. The FACS(f) interface will report the same data that it does  today.

SGL 2) (KSC) Agency confirmation report interface from Treasury with SAP: The final agency confirmation report does not display all the confirmed credits or payments by the last calendar day of each month. Will it be possible to post an adjustment to SAP for a payment or credit during the following month to balance the prior month SF-224 with Treasury? This is important in order to avoid any Statement of Difference due to the timing of a Final Agency Confirmation Report from Treasury.
Answer:
Yes, postings will be allowed as long as the period has not yet been closed by the Agency.

SGL 3) (ARC) Could you please provide some additional insight into how Costs in Excess of Obligations are handled in SAP?

Answer:
Cost over obligations will be calculated in the CCR Extension and the Straightline extension; however, these transactions will not be posted in SAP on the contract.  By doing so, the transactions would automatically obligate and reduce allotment, only Purchasing has the authority to obligate the Government.  However, cost over obligation transactions will be transferred to the Business Warehouse and reported as a separate line item on the project t status reports.

General (Gen): 

Kathy Shockley / Terry Whaley

Gen 1) (JSC) For NASA or JSC Human Resources:  Will some aspects of SAP (e. g., roles defined as “significant responsibility,” team leads defined as the PR/workload assigner, imply supervisory functions and get into Position Description/GS grade issues?

Answer:
We have met with the Union representatives at MSFC to discuss roles. A role, as defined in SAP, is only one aspect of a person’s job. We are not changing or requesting changes to any Position Descriptions.

Gen 2) When will the Wave 2 Centers get the latest version of the Process Flows?
Answer:
When MDM access is set up, the Center Teams will have access to the Process Flows.

Gen 3) When will the Accenture team members come on board for the Wave 2 Centers?
Answer:
The Accenture Center Project Manager is scheduled to roll-on on April 1, 2002.


The additional Accenture team members are scheduled to roll-on on April 29, 2002.

Gen 4) When will the Wave 2 Centers get access to MDM?
Answer:
MDM access process procedures were distributed to the Center Project Managers  on March 16, 2002.  Once Lotus Notes licenses are available at the Centers, the Center Project Managers should follow the process for obtaining access.  This process should not take long to complete.  The Center Information Technology Point of Contact should work with the Integration Project Office for connectivity and other technical issues.

Gen 5) How do the methodology steps line up with the implementation schedule?
Answer:
The Methodology Training was intended to address the methodology steps and not the timing of activities.  The Center implementation schedule will be developed during the Understanding Phase.

Conversion (Cvn):  

Wanda Broadhead

Cvn 1) (KSC) Regarding Conversion Inventory presentation: I believe I heard that only open reservations and open commitments will be converted into SAP. Will there be an inventory of closed (ex: travel) reservations, commitments that have been fully liquidated for historical purposes to find the status of Programs/projects? If so, how many years would SAP allow the centers to store?
Answer:
All travel for open appropriations will be converted.  The open travel orders will be converted through the Funds Commitment conversion.  The closed travel orders will be converted at a high level through the Project Cost Not Associated to a Contract conversion.

Interface Inventory (Int):
Anita Webster  

Int 1) (JSC) How does information get to Treasury (analog line?)?

Answer:  CONTROL-M, the scheduling software, will initiate the SAP processing which will generate these payment files. e*Gate receives notification that the files exist and will individually FTP the files to the center’s LPAR. CONTROL-M will execute JCL on the center’s LPAR to transmit the file to the Treasury mainframe via CONNECT:Direct.

Int 2) (JSC) How will the interface between Travel Manager and SAP work?

Answer:
The Travel Manager application will be populated with the FCS entries from SAP  that are valid for charging Travel. The Travel Order will be posted in SAP utilizing the Funds Commitment Document. The Travel Voucher will be posted in SAP utilizing the FI Invoice.

Reporting (Rpt):

Joan Brewer / Erin Upton

Rpt 1) (JSC) Can you update us on the reporting capability?

Answer:


· Completed the analysis of the Agency Minimum Standard reports (AMSR)
· Standard R/3 reports

· Customized R/3 reports

· BW queries

· AMSR Functional Areas

· Accounting AMSR (A/R, A/P, and SGL)

· 20 R/3 Custom Designs

· 9 BW Queries

· Budget Execution AMSR (BE, and CM)

· 10 R/3 Custom Designs

· 15 BW Queries

· Purchasing AMSR

· 5 R/3 Custom Designs

· 18 BW Queries

· EIS Queries

· 40 EIS Queries Identified

· 22 Scope of Core Finance
· System Integration Test
· 36 Queries ready for test

· 16 R/3 Custom Reports ready

· Reporting Current Activities

· Developing the EIS queries

· Developing remaining AMSR

· Responding to SIRs from SIT
Rpt 2) (JSC) Reports:  Security: Will all data be available to users through Business Warehouse (BW)?  Other centers?
Answer:
The data that is required to support the AMSR’s  and EIS queries will be available to users through BW.  Only authorized users will have access to the data. If a user has access they will be able to see all the data including other Centers data. 
Rpt 3) (JSC) Reports:  Queries using custom reports.  Can a user query activity on one accounting code?

Answer:
Yes, the user has the capability to select any combination of the FCS for reporting.
So in order to satisfy the need to report across multiple fiscal years you can have your own developers do that for you?
Answer:
Absolutely.
Rpt 4)  (JSC) Reports:  Will the data in BW segmented by FY?  If so, can we query across more than FY at a time?

Answer:
Yes the data will be segmented by FY. There is not a current requirement to display multiple FY in a single query.
Rpt 5) (KSC) Will it be possible to create special “ad hoc” reports within SAP to support specific needs of other directorates at a center? If so, will only certain individuals have the capability to create an ad hoc report while most other users will be able to only utilize the custom canned query reports?

Answer:
BW Ad-hoc capability will be available to Center Developers and Power Users. All users will have the ability to slice and dice, sort data and drill to lower level detail due to the BW query tools capability. 
Forms Inventory (Frm): 
Joan Brewer / Erin Upton  

Frm 1) (JSC) Is there a form to handle sales to other agencies (such as NASA Std Initiators to DoD)?

Answer:
No.  Twenty-four custom developed forms have been identified for the Agency. But this form has not been identified as an Agency requirement.
Costing Sheets on WBS in PS will not be used to calculate statistical costs - Benefits


Statistical costs recorded to the correct fund when using Journal Voucher (FI)


Lessens the burden of liquidating the advance/down payment


Gives centers flexibility on amount charged (partial waivers) and when they charge


No maintenance of costing sheets 


Consistency on how stat costs are processed








Statistical Costs can be charged/billed at one time (more often if center prefers) 


Survey Results of eight centers’ responses on billing stat costs:


Six centers answered they bill upfront


One center bills upfront or at one time


One center bills quarterly for some and semi-annually for some


Change in policy - update FMM 9090 


Based on improved (Excel) Estimated Price Sheet/Report (EPS/R) 


Costs recorded by Manual JV – updates PS and applicable Cost Centers 


May/may not be refundable -  based on agreement with customer














